
 
Planning Board 

Meeting Agenda 
March 18, 2014 at 7:00pm 

Council Chambers, 201 S Main St 

Invocation 

1. Approve minutes of the January 21, 2014 meeting 

2. WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401). Request by WKZ Housing, LLC to rezone property located at 
1108 S Main St (GPIN 8883277291) from General Business (B-2) to Conditional Business (C-B) to 
construct a 72-unit multifamily apartment community. 

3. Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402). Request by Graham Commons Associates Limited Partnership to 
rezone a portion of the property located on Auto Park Dr at Hanford Rd and W Crescent Square Dr 
(GPIN 8883091817) from Residential (low density) (R-18) to Conditional Residential (C-R) to construct 
a 64-unit multifamily rental community. 

A complete agenda packet is available at www.cityofgraham.com 



                         501  
PLANNING ZONING BOARD 

Tuesday, January 21, 2014 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board held its regular meeting on Tuesday, January 21, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the Graham Municipal Building. Board members present were Ricky Hall, Bill Teer, Andy 
Rumley, Bonnie Blalock, Tim Beshel and Dean Ward. Michael Benesch was absent. Staff members present 
were Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner, Frankie Maness, City Manager, Darcy Sperry, Zoning Enforcement 
Officer and Martha Johnson, Zoning/Inspections Technician. 
 
Chairman Andy Rumley called the meeting to order and explained the function of the Board. 
 
Invocation was given by Ricky Hall.   
 
1. Approve minutes of the December 17, 2013 meeting.  Ricky Hall made a motion for approval, second Bonnie 
Blalock. All voted in favor.  
 
2. Rezoning for Mid-State Magic (RZ1401). Request by the City of Graham to rezone property located on 
E Interstate Service Rd at E Gilbreath St (GPIN 8884402904) from Conditional Industrial (C-I) to Heavy 
Industrial (I-2). Melissa Guilbeau stated this is a request from the City of Graham to rezone the property from  
C-I to I-2. The stated reason for this rezoning request is that the project from 2009 is no longer in the works and 
the City feels that rezoning the property back to the I-2 zoning that it was prior to the C-I zoning will make it 
easier to potentially market and sell the property. Ricky Hall made a motion to approve the rezoning, second by 
Tim Beshel. All voted in favor. 
 
3. Rezoning for JRC Development C-R (RZ1402). Consideration to rezone property located at 
613 W Gilbreath St (GPIN 8874820026) from Conditional Residential (C-R) to Residential (high density) (R-7) 
in accordance with Section 10.85.F of the Development Ordinance. Melissa Guilbeau said if the 3 year limit is 
over on an approved conditional rezoning the property can be rezoned. This would be a recommendation by the 
Planning Board. This property was approved December 5, 2006 for a six lot subdivision which had construction 
drawings reviewed after the rezoning but those drawings were never approved by TRC and the engineering 
review fee of $600.00 was never paid. To Staff’s knowledge no further progress was made on this conditional 
rezoning. December 5, 2013 was the end of the timeframe for the approved petition and conditions due to the 
time added by the Permit Extension Act. It is now up to the Board to decide if progress has been made and if the 
Board wants to make a recommendation to rezone it. Melissa Guilbeau stated that the current property owner 
had been in contact with her in the last few days. Ms. Guilbeau said it was her understanding he was not the one 
who got the approval but had purchased the property in foreclosure and hopes to move forward with that 
project. He had been asking questions and sounds like he is still interested but she hasn’t heard from him in a 
couple of days. Ricky Hall made a motion to approve rezoning to R-7, second by Dean Ward. All voted in 
favor.  
 
4. Text Amendment for Screening and Drive-in Theaters. Request by staff to amend the Development 
Ordinance to clarify the screening requirement for O-I, B-2 and B-3 districts and remove standards for drive-in 
theaters. The first concerns the requirements for screening contained in Section 10.246.10. The issue is that for 
the I-1 and I-2 districts, the ordinance provides that the required screening shall be 8-12 feet high at maturity. 
But for the O-I, B-2 and B-3 districts, the ordinance does not provide the “at maturity” option, so it may be 
interpreted that the screening must be at least six feet high at planting. Staff recommends adding language to 
provide that the screenings for the O-I, B-2 and B-3 districts shall be at least six feet high at maturity, which will 
clarify the requirement, make it similar to the requirement for the I-1 and I-2 districts, and lessen the burden on 
property owners by not requiring the planting of a six-foot high screen. 



502                                                                                                                      
 
 
The second issue is that standards for drive-in theaters are provided in Section 10.149 Special uses listed, but 
“drive-in theater” is not listed as a use in the Table of Permitted Uses. There are two potential ways to address 
this issue: (1) add “drive-in theater” to the Table of Permitted Uses or (2) delete the entry for “Drive-in Theater” 
from Section 10.149 Special uses listed. Staff recommends deleting the entry from Section 10.149 because this 
is a use that is longer common. According to the website www.drive-ins.com, there used to be 210 drive-in 
theaters operating in North Carolina, including three in Burlington. Today, all but six of these drive-in theaters 
are closed. Also, staff cannot find that a special use permit has ever been issued for a drive-in theater in Graham. 
Melissa Guilbeau stated her recommendation would be to take the standards out of Section 10.149.  
 
Ricky Hall made a motion to adopt both text amendments as proposed, second by Tim Beshel. All voted in 
favor. 
 
There being no further business Andy Rumley adjourned the meeting. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Martha Johnson 
Inspections/Zoning Technician 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401) 

Type of Request: Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 
City Council on April 1, 2014 

Contact Information 
Charlie Heritage, V.P., WKZ Housing, LLC 
8401 Key Blvd, Greensboro, NC  27409 
336-669-3587; charlie@weaver-kirkland.com 

Summary 
This is a request to rezone the subject property from B-2 to C-B to 
construct a 72-unit multifamily apartment community. The parcel 
is currently occupied by a vacant single family house with the 
remainder of the property wooded. 

 

 

 

 

 

Location 
1108 S Main St 

GPIN: 8883277291 

Current Zoning 
General Business (B-2) 

Proposed Zoning 
Conditional Business (C-B) 

Overlay District 
S Main St/Hwy 87 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, O-I & B-2 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses,  

General Businesses and Vacant 

Size 
5.23 acres 

Density 
13.8 DU/acre 

Public Water & Sewer 
Yes, along S Main St 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with condition 



Staff Report, WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401) Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to C-B in accordance with the preliminary site plan 
prepared by Moore Riley Architects, revised 3/6/2014. The proposal is for a 72-unit multifamily 
apartment community consisting of six three-story residential buildings and a community 
clubhouse/leasing office. The applicant also proposes to construct a covered gazebo and a fully 
commercially equipped and enclosed children’s playground. The clubhouse will include community 
gathering areas, commercial grade washers and dryers, a business center with fully equipped 
workstations, a kitchenette, and leasing offices. Other specifics of the proposal include: 

· 24 two-bedroom units, 24 three-bedroom and 24 four-bedroom; eight will be fully accessible 

· 145 parking spaces(minimum is 132 spaces), including 9 handicap spaces 

· Five-foot sidewalk along S Main St 

· Planting yards in accordance with ordinance requirements 

· Erosion control to meet stormwater requirements 

 

Technical Review Committee 
The TRC reviewed the preliminary site plan and met with the applicant on February 17, 2014. The 
applicant submitted a revised preliminary site plan on March 10, 2014. All TRC comments were 
addressed with the exception of those listed below. Additional TRC comments will be addressed as part 
of final site plan review and approval. 

· The “Erosion Control” basin should be labeled as “Stormwater Treatment Device” 
· The stormwater treatment device appears to be undersized and the Type B landscaping cannot 

encroach into the basin; for these reasons, the location of the adjacent buildings and parking may 
need to be adjusted 

· Provide autoturn or appropriate templates to show that a ladder truck can turn around at the back 
of the parking lot 



Staff Report, WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401) Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.1.3. Enforce landscaping standards to help beautify and 
buffer development sites. The proposal will adhere to the 
City’s landscaping requirements. 

· 6.3.1. Encourage the conversion and development of higher 
density residential development around the downtown and 
other designated activity areas. The proposal is for a higher 
density residential development in a designated 
Neighborhood Center. 

· 6.3.1. Continue to protect established residential areas from 
incremental rezonings to a lower land use. The property is 
currently zoned general business and the proposal is to 
rezone to conditional business to construct a multifamily 
development. 

· 6.3.7. Encourage the incorporation of open space design 
within new developments. The proposal includes a 
playground and other common open spaces. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 
· 7.4.4.1.3. Provide a transitional buffer between the proposed 

commercial and village centers and existing or proposed 
single-family neighborhoods that would consist of 
landscaping, multi-family developments and/or townhouse 
developments. The proposed multifamily development would 
provide a transition between existing single family houses 
and the commercial development along S Main St. 

· 7.4.4.1.8. Encourage neighborhood residential development in remaining undeveloped areas that 
are adjacent to existing residential developments. Additionally, interconnectivity between 
neighborhoods should be a priority for new developments. The proposed multifamily development is 
on a large undeveloped tract that backs up to existing residential development and is adjacent to 
commercial developments. The surrounding development makes new road connections difficult, 
though there may be opportunity in the future for a driveway interconnection on the northern 
property boundary. The proposal includes sidewalks within the site and along S Main St. 

Graham Pedestrian Plan 
· Recommends a five-foot sidewalk on S Main St as a high-priority project. The proposed development 

includes a sidewalk along S Main St. 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning District 
Central 

Development Type 
Neighborhood Center and 

Neighborhood Residential, backing 
up to Suburban Residential 

For single family residential, 
townhouses, commercial, 

office/institutional and mixed use 

Characteristics include  
open space; parks included  

within development; pedestrian-
oriented; automobile-oriented; 
design requirements; sidewalks; 

street trees; landscaping; 
buffering/screening; parking 
provided on-site; height of 

structures regulated; controlled 
access; building orientation 

Density of 3+ DU/acre 
Commercial <10,000sf 

Infrastructure includes water, 
sewer, street connectivity and 

underground utilities 



Staff Report, WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401) Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the Conditional Rezoning, with the following condition: 

· The size and layout of the stormwater treatment device and the turnaround at the end of the 
parking lot will be evaluated as part of final site plan review. If these necessitate a shift in the 
location of buildings or parking, these revisions will maintain the general layout of the site as 
proposed and will conform to all ordinance requirements for multifamily, or they will be considered 
major revisions. 

The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development furthers a number of goals of the Growth Management Plan and is consistent with 
the Development Toolkit Checklist for Neighborhood Center and Residential. 









PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o The size and layout of the stormwater treatment device and the turnaround at the end of the 
parking lot will be evaluated as part of final site plan review. If these necessitate a shift in the 
location of buildings or parking, these revisions will maintain the general layout of the site as 
proposed and will conform to all ordinance requirements for multifamily, or they will be 
considered major revisions. 

o [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 18th day of March, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

WKZ River Bend Apartments 
(CR1401) 

Type of Request 
Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

City Council on April 1, 2014 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402) 

Type of Request: Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 
City Council on April 1, 2014 

Contact Information 
James B. Smith, Graham Commons Associates 
Limited Partnership 
2939 Breezewood Ave, Ste 201 
Fayetteville, NC  28303 
910-485-6600; jsmith@dugginssmith.com 

Summary 
This is a request to rezone the subject property from R-18 to C-R 
to construct a 64-unit multifamily rental community. The parcel is 
currently wooded. Two streams cross the property and there is a 
50-foot PNG gas line easement on the front of the property next 
to Auto Park Dr. 

 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to C-R in 
accordance with the preliminary site plan and building elevations 
prepared by MDG, dated January 2014. The proposal is for a  
64-unit multifamily rental community consisting of seven two-story residential buildings and a 
community building. The applicant also proposes to construct a playground/tot lot, picnic shelter and 
outdoor sitting structure, and to install bike racks and sitting benches. Other specifics of the proposal 
include: 

Location 
Auto Park Dr and Hanford Rd 

GPIN: 8883091817 

Current Zoning 
Residential (low density) (R-18) 

Proposed Zoning 
Conditional Residential (C-R) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18, R-12, B-2 & I-1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses and  

General Businesses 

Size 
9.7 acres 

Density 
6.6 DU/acre 

Public Water & Sewer 
Yes, along Auto Park Dr and 

Hanford Rd 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with condition 



Staff Report, Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402) Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

· 44 two-bedroom units and 20 three-bedroom; eight will be fully accessible 

· 131 parking spaces(minimum is 106 spaces), including 10 handicap spaces 

· Landscaping beyond ordinance requirements 

· Erosion control to meet stormwater requirements 

· Four acres of undisturbed natural area 

 

 

 



Staff Report, Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402) Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

Technical Review Committee 
The TRC reviewed the preliminary site plan and met with the applicant on March 10, 2014. The applicant 
was originally scheduled for a TRC meeting on March 3rd but that meeting had to be rescheduled due to 
inclement weather. Therefore, staff has not had time to compile all TRC comments and the applicant has 
not had time to address them as of the writing of this staff report. Some preliminary TRC comments that 
may impact the overall development include: 

· It is likely that alternate landscaping will need to be used along the northern stream and the street 
yard, due to the stream and the PNG easement 

· Consider providing a sidewalk along Auto Park Dr and Hanford Rd 

· The riparian buffer for the northern stream is 50 feet from the top of bank; this may impact the 
location of buildings and parking 

· Consider providing only one driveway into the development; preferred location is approximately 
75 feet westward from the driveway that is currently proposed closest to Hanford Rd 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.1.1. Support efforts to protect sensitive natural resources 
including wetlands, waterways, slopes, floodplains, etc. 
There are two streams and potentially wetlands on this site. 
The development will be required to abide by riparian buffer 
requirements. 

· 6.1.3. Enforce landscaping standards to help beautify and 
buffer development sites. The proposal will adhere to the 
City’s landscaping requirements. 

· 6.3.1. Prohibit residential development that is in close 
proximity to incompatible uses or provide proper buffering 
to protect existing uses and new development. The proposal 
includes a large undisturbed natural area between the 
development and adjacent single family homes and will itself 
serve as a transition between existing commercial and 
industrial developments and single family houses. 

· 6.3.7. Encourage the incorporation of open space design 
within new developments. The proposal includes a 
playground and other common open and undisturbed areas. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· 7.4.4.1.3. Provide a transitional buffer between the proposed commercial and village centers and 
existing or proposed single-family neighborhoods that would consist of landscaping, multi-family 
developments and/or townhouse developments. The proposed multifamily development and 
adjacent undisturbed natural areas would provide a transition between existing single family houses 
and the commercial and industrial development along S Main St, Auto Park Dr and W Crescent 
Square Dr. 

Planning District 
Central 

Development Type 
Neighborhood Residential 

adjacent to Highway Commercial 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare 

For single family residential  
and townhouses 

Characteristics include  
open space; parks included with 

development; pedestrian-
oriented; automobile-oriented; 

sidewalks; street trees; 
landscaping 

Density of 3+ DU/acre 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 



Staff Report, Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402) Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

· 7.4.4.1.7. Encourage residential development that conserves land along rivers, creeks and tributaries 
to protect environmentally sensitive areas, promote open space preservation, and provide a natural 
buffer for waterways. The development will include approximately 4 acres of undisturbed natural 
area adjacent to a creek and will be required to abide by riparian buffer requirements. 

· 7.4.4.1.8. Encourage neighborhood residential development in remaining undeveloped areas that 
are adjacent to existing residential developments. Additionally, interconnectivity between 
neighborhoods should be a priority for new developments. The proposed multifamily development is 
on a large undeveloped tract that backs up to existing residential development and is across the 
street from commercial and light industrial developments. The streams and existing surrounding 
development make new road connections difficult. The proposal includes two driveway entrances 
and sidewalks are provided within the site and recommended along Auto Park Dr and Hanford Rd. 

Graham Pedestrian Plan 

· Recommends a five-foot sidewalk on Hanford Rd as a lower priority, long-term project. TRC has 
requested that this development include a five-foot sidewalk along Hanford Rd. 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the Conditional Rezoning, with the following condition: 

· Due to the delay caused by inclement weather, all TRC comments will be addressed prior to City 
Council approval. TRC comments that may change the layout of the development include NCDOT’s 
recommendation for only one driveway and the riparian buffer for the northern stream. 

The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development furthers a number of goals of the Growth Management Plan. While it is not 
strictly consistent with the Development Toolkit Checklist for Neighborhood Residential because it is 
multifamily as opposed to townhouses, the proposal is at a similar scale and density to what could 
be expected of a townhouse development. 













PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o Due to the delay caused by inclement weather, all TRC comments will be addressed prior to City 
Council approval. TRC comments that may change the layout of the development include NCDOT’s 
recommendation for only one driveway and the riparian buffer for the northern stream. 

o [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 18th day of March, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

Graham Commons Phase I 
(CR1402) 

Type of Request 
Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on March 18, 2014 

City Council on April 1, 2014 


	Agenda
	1. 1/21/2014 Minutes
	2. WKZ River Bend Apartments
	3. Graham Commons Phase I

